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United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
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Approved by the FHEO Regional Director on behalf of the United States Depaftment of Housing
and Urban Development
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A. Parties and Subject Property
Complainants:

Southwest Fair Housing Council
323 W. Roosevelt Street

Suite 100B

Phoenix, AZ 85003

Arizona Fair Housing Center
1402 S Central Ave.
Building A, Suite B
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Complainants Represented by:

Ellen Katz

William E. Morris Institute for Justice (WEMIJ)
3707 N. Seventh Street

Suite 220

Phoenix, AZ 85014

Rose Daly-Rooney

Arizona Center for Disability Law (ACDL)
32 W. Roosevelt Street

Suite 100B

Phoenix, AZ 85003

Respondent/Recipient (“Recipient™):

- City of Phoenix, Arizona
200 W. Washington St.
Phoenix, AZ 85003

B. Statement of Facts

A complaint was filed on August 2, 2016 with the United States Department of Housing and
Urban Development (“the Department”) alleging that the Complainants were injured by
discriminatory acts of Recipient. Complainants allege that Recipient violated §§ 804(b),
804(f)(2) and 804(f)(3)(B) of the Fair Housing Act as amended in 1988, 42 U.S.C. 3601 et
seq. (“the Act™), based on race, national origin and disability. Complainants also allege that
Recipient violated Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (“Title VI”), Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (“Section 504”); and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990 (“ADA”). '
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C. Term of Agreement

1. This Conciliation/Voluntary Compliance Agreement (“Agreement”) shall govern the

conduct of the parties to it for a period of four (4) years from the effective date of the
Agreement.

D. Effective Date

2.

The parties expressly agree that this Agreement constitutes neither a binding contract
under state or federal law nor an Agreement pursuant to the Act, unless and until such

time as it is approved by the Department, through the Fair Housing and Equal

Opportunity (“FHEO”) Regional Director or her designee.

. This Agreement shall become effective on the date on which it is approved by the FHEO

Regional Director, or her designee.

3 a. A copy of the fully executed agreement will be emailed to the Recipient’s signatory,
Don Logan, at donald.logan/@phoenix.gov on the effective date of this Agreement, or
as soon as possible thereafter. Copies will also be mailed to the parties and
representatives.

E. General Provisions

4.

The parties acknowledge that this Agreement is a voluntary and full settlement of the
disputed complaint. The parties affirm that they have read and fully understand the
terms set forth herein. No party has been coerced, intimidated, threatened, or in any
way forced to become a party to this Agreement.

It is understood that Recipient denies any violation of law and that this Agreement does
not constitute an admission by Recipient or evidence of a determination by the
Department of any violation of the Act, Title VI, Section 504, Title II of the ADA or
any other law.

The Recipient acknowledges that it has an affirmative duty not to discriminate under
the Act, Title VI, Section 504 and Title II of the ADA, and that it is unlawful to
retaliate against any person because that person has made a complaint, testified,
assisted, or participated in any manner in a proceeding under the Act, Title VI, Section
504 or Title I of the ADA. Recipient further acknowledges that any subsequent
retaliation or discrimination constitutes both a material breach of this Agreement, and a
statutory violation of the Act, Title VI, Section 504 and Title II of the ADA.

This Agreement, after it has been approved by the FHEO Regional Director, or her
designee, is binding upon the Recipient, its employees, heirs, successors and assigns
and all others in active concert in the ownership or operation of the subject property.
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8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

It is understood that, pursuant to Section 810(b)(4) of the Act, upon approval of this
Agreement by the FHEO Regional Director or her designee, it is a public document.

This Agreement does not in any way limit or restrict the Department’s authority to
investigate any other complaint involving Recipient made pursuant to the Act, Title VI,
Section 504 and Title II of the ADA, or any other complaint within the Department’s
jurisdiction.

No amendments to, modifications of, or waiver of any provision of this Agreement
shall be effective unless: (a) all signatories or their successors to the Agreement agree
in writing to the amendment, modification or waiver; (b) the amendment, modification
or waiver is in writing; and (c) the amendment, modification, or waiver is approved
and signed by the FHEO Regional Director, or her designee.

The parties agree that the execution of this Agreement may be accomplished by
separate execution of consents to this Agreement, the original executed signature
pages to be attached to the body of the Agreement to constitute one document.

It is understood that the signature of Enrique Medina-Ochoa is made with the authority
of and on behalf of Complainant Arizona Fair Housing Center. It is understood that
the signature of Jay Young is made with the authority of and on behalf of Complainant
Southwest Fair Housing Council. It is understood that the signature of Don Logan,
Equal Opportunity Director, is made with the authority of and on behalf of Recipient
City of Phoenix, Arizona.

The Complainants hereby forever waive, release, and covenant not to sue the
Department or the Recipient, their heirs, successors, executors, assigns, agents,
officers, board members, employees and attorneys with regard to any and all claims,
damages and injuries of whatever nature whether presently known or unknown, arising
out of the subject matter of HUD Case Numbers 09-16-4988-8, 09-16-4988-6, 09-16-
4988-4 and 09-16-4988-D, or which could have been filed in any action or suit arising
from said subject matter.

The Recipient hereby forever waives, releases and covenants not to sue the Department
or the Complainants and their heirs, successors, executors, assigns, agents, officers,
board members, employees and attorneys with regard to any and all claims, damages
and injuries of whatever nature whether presently known or unknown, arising out of the
subject matter of HUD Case Numbers 09-16-4988-8, 09-16-4988-6, 09-16-4988-4 and
09-16-4988-D, or which could have been filed in any action or suit arising from said
subject matter.

F. Relief
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15. The Recipient agrees to take the following actions, and, as set forth in this Agreement
will provide the Department with written certification that these requirements have been
met:

(a) Recipient shall continue to accept both online and paper pre-applications for its
Housing Choice Voucher program throughout any open Housing Choice
Voucher pre-application period; the paper pie-applications will be available for
pick up at Recipient’s office located at 830 East Jefferson, Phoenix, AZ 85034
during all business hours during the pre-application period, or by email upon
request to the Recipient at: pichole.avoola@phoenix.gov. Pre-applications may
be submitted online, in person or by mail. It is understood that in order to be
considered, a pre-application must be received by Recipient at 830 East
Jefferson, Phoenix, AZ 85034 by the stated deadline regardless of method of
transmission. Recipient agrees to add the 830 E. Jefferson, Phoenix, AZ, 85034
to its website, https://www.phoenix.gcov/housing,

(b) Recipient shall continue to provide reasonable accommodations to individuals
with disabilities and will engage in the interactive process in accordance with
the Act, Section 504, and Title II of the ADA, including with respect to the
Housing Choice Voucher program; such reasonable accommodations will
include, but are not limited to, accepting Housing Choice Voucher pre-
applications over the phone, providing one-on-one assistance to individuals
with disabilities to help them complete and submit their Housing Choice
Voucher pre-applications over the telephone or by alternative means,, and
providing interpreter services for hearing-impaired individuals during any open
Housing Choice Voucher pre-application period.

(c) Recipient shall continue to provide oral langiiage assistance for individuals
~ with limited-English proficiency upon request, including but not limited to
providing one-on-one assistance to limited-English proficient consumers to
help them complete and submit their Housing Choice Voucher pre-
applications online, over the phone, or in person; to facilitate this assistance,
Recipient shall use an interpreter service during all business hours throughout
any open Housing Choice Voucher pre-application period.

Within five (5) business days of the effective date of this Agreement Recipient
shall provide documentary evidence demonstrating that it has contracted with
an interpreter service to show compliance with this term.

(d) Within one (1) business day of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient
shall extend the deadline of its Housing Choice Voucher pre-application
period to August 19, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. and shall notify the public of the
extended deadline by the means specified in paragraph 15(i) below. -
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Within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this Agreement,
Recipient shall provide documentary evidence demonstrating how the public
was notified of the extended Housing Choice Voucher pre-application
deadline to show compliance with this term.

(e) Recipient shall continue to ensure that staff is available to respond to

®

disability-related accommodation requests and language assistance requests
both in person and telephonically from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on all business
days; staff will also be available to respond to such requests on Saturday,
August 13, 2016, and Sunday, August 14, 2016, from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.
to facilitate the Housing Choice Voucher application process.

Within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this Agreement
Recipient shall provide documentary evidence demonstrating how the public
was notified about the availability of such assistance, including the expanded
hours on August 13-14, 2016, and the phone numbers to call to request
reasonable accommodations and language assistance, to show compliance
with this term.

Recipient shall continue to prominently display on its website,
https://www.phoenix.gov/housing. the availability of free language assistance
services and information on how to request language assistance or a
disability-related reasonable accommodation, including the relevant phone
numbers in a format compatible with screen reading software. The
Department will deem the uploading of these documents compatible with
screen reading software as compliance with this provision even if some
screen reading software does not recognize the documents. Within one (1)
business day of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall post the
information specified in this paragraph on its website in English, Spanish,
Arabic, Vietnamese and Chinese traditional.

Within five (5) business days of the effective date of this Agreement,
Recipient shall provide a screenshot and/or link demonstrating compliance
with this term. '

(g) Recipient shall continue to offer the Housing Choice Voucher Wait List

Information, Wait List Application Steps and locations of wait list partners in
English, Spanish, Arabic, Vietnamese and Chinese traditional in a format
compatible with screen reading software. The Department will deem the
uploading of these documents compatible with screen reading software as

‘compliance with this provision even if some screen reading software does not

recognize the documents. Within one (1) business day of the effective date of
this Agreement, Recipient shall post on its website, instructions in the
languages specified in this paragraph.
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Recipient shall provide a screenshot and/or link demonstrating compliance
with this term within five (5) business days of the effective date of this
Agreement.

(h) Recipient shall continue to post frequently asked questions and responses on

(@

)

its_websitehttps://www.phoenix.gov/housing, in English, Spanish, Arabic,
Vietnamese and Chinese traditional. The posting shall include Recipient’s
customer service phone number and a statement in each of the languages
specified in this paragraph advising consumers that people who encounter a
problem can call Recipient’s customer service phone line for assistance in a
format compatible with screen reading software. The Department will deem
the uploading of these documents compatible with screen reading software as
compliance with this provision even if some screen reading software does not
recognize the documents.

Within five (5) business days of the effective date of this Agreement
Recipient shall provide a screenshot and/or link demonstrating compliance
with this term.

Within one (1) business day of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient
will issue a Public Service Announcement press release announcing the
extended Housing Choice Voucher pre-application deadline and stating the
availability of reasonable accommodations for people with disabilities and
free language assistance services, including a link to Recipient’s Section 8
Housing webpage and Housing Choice Voucher pre-application and will
email the Public Service Announcement press release to all of the parties
specified in Appendices A and B (attached), which will be known as the
“notification list.”

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient shall
provide a copy of the press release and confirmation that the press release was
sent to all parties on the notification list to demonstrate compliance with this
term.

Recipient agrees that upon notification by Complainants to.the Housing
Department Director regarding organizations who Complainants want added
to the notification list, Recipient shall add such organizations to the
notification list for use during future outreach efforts regarding the Housing
Choice Voucher program.

(k) Complainants understand that they, and all consumers, can sign up to receive

emails regarding the Housing Choice Voucher program, which includes
notifications when the wait list opens, by subscribing to the Housing Choice
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)

Voucher list serve on Recipient’s website at
https://www.phoenix. gov/housing.

Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effective date of this Agreement,
Recipient’s staff members who work with the Housing Choice Voucher
program will attend live training on fair housing to be provided by the
Department. The training will include coverage of the Act, Title VI, Section
504 and Title II of the ADA. Recipient will identify a staff member to provide
approximately one-half hour of training during each training session regarding
Recipient’s Language Assistance Plan’s use and compliance. Training shall be
conducted in two sessions, one in the morning and one in the afternoon, such
that each staff member required to participate will attend one session.
Subsequently, Recipient will ensure that all of its employees who work with
the Housing Choice Voucher program receive live fair housing training from
the Department annually for the term of this Agreement, which will include
education regarding Recipient’s Language Assistance Plan and assistance
available to persons with limited English proficiency, as well as coverage of
the Act, Title VI, Section 504, and Title II of the ADA, for a total of at least
three (3) such trainings during the term of this Agreement. The subsequent
trainings shall occur at approximately one (1) year intervals after the initial
training as set forth in this paragraph, so that by the date this Agreement
expires, at least three (3) fair housing trainings shall have taken place. To
demonstrate compliance with this term, Recipient shall provide a copy of the
sign in sheet for each training within ten (10) business days after each training
has taken place.

(m)Recipient shall provide the Department proposed dates for training in writing,

within thirty (30) calendar days of the effective date of this Agreement. In
approximately October 2017 and October 2018, Recipient shall schedule
training to be provided by the Department and have Recipient’s employees
who work with the Housing Choice Voucher attend, to show compliance with
this term. '

(n) Recipient’s Equal Opportunity Department will continue to collaborate with

Complainants in marketing and outreach to promote April as Fair Housing
Month.

By May 30 of each year for the term of this Agreement, Recipient shall
provide a letter, screen shot(s), and/or link(s), and/or other evidence to show
marketing and outreach efforts undertaken to promote April as Fair Housing
Month to demonstrate compliance with this term.

(o) Within six (6) months of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient will

add a Spanish language home page to its Housing Department website, so that
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English and Spanish language Housing Department home pages will both
be available on the Internet.

Within seven (7) months of the effective date of this Agreement, Recipient
shall provide a screenshot and/or a link demonstrating compliance with this
term.

(p) Prior to opening the next Housing Choice Voucher wait list period,

Recipient will test the online pre-application system by having individuals
with visual impairments and/or who use screen reading or other assistive
technology for people with visual impairments test the system before it
goes online. If the Housing Choice Voucher wait list opens again during
the term of this Agreement, Recipient shall provide documentation
regarding testing, test results, and changes made (if any) to the Department
at least seven (7) business days before the date that the Housing Choice
Voucher wait list opens.

(q) It is understood that Recipient has already informed Yardi Systems, Inc. that

(r)

a complaint was filed with the Department and explained the compatibility
issues discovered during testing of screen reading technology with the
Housing Choice Voucher pre-application process.

Within thirty (30) business days of the effective date of this Agreement,
Recipient shall provide a copy of its communications with Yardi Systems, Inc.
regarding the compatibility issues to demonstrate compliance with this term.

Recipient will include a discussion on Fair Housing issues at least twice a
year in its email blast sent to residents, Housing Choice Voucher holders, and
all parties who signed up for Recipient’s list serve to receive Housing
information and communications.

For three years beginning in October 2017, and continuing in October 2018
and October 2019, Recipient shall provide a copy of each email blast and/or a
link to each email blast, a copy of the distribution list, and confirmation that
the email blast was sent, to demonstrate compliance with this term.

16. Recipient continues to acknowledge that the Act makes it unlawful to discriminate on
the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, familial status, and disability, and
further makes it unlawful to refuse to make reasonable accommodations in rules,
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policies, practices, or services, when such accommodations may be necessary to afford
a person with a disability equal opportunity to use and enjoy a dwelling.

16 a Recipient continues to agree to comply with all of the provisions of the Act.

16 b Recipient agrees to continue to make reasonable accommodations in rules, policies,
practices, or services, when such accommodations may be necessary to afford a -
disabled person equal opportunity to use and enjoy the services provided by
Recipient as required by law.

17. Section 504 Requirements

As a recipient of federal funds, Recipient is obligated, and agrees, to comply with the
requirements of Section 504. Recipient agrees to provide documents showing
compliance with the following Section 504 requirements within twenty (20) calendar
days of the effective date of this Agreement:

a. 24 CFR Part 8, Section 8.6(a)(1)(2)-Communications.

The Regulation requires that Recipients shall take appropriate steps
to ensure effective communication with applicants, beneficiaries, and
members of the public to include telecommunication devices for deaf
persons (TDD’s) or equally effective communication systems.

b. 24 CFR Part 8, Section 8.53(a)-Designation of responsible employee
(Section 504 Coordinator).

The Regulation requires that Recipients that employ 15 or more persons
shall designate at least one (1) person to coordinate its efforts to comply
with this Part.

c¢. 24 CFR Part 8, Section 8.53(b)-Adoption of grievance procedures.

The Regulation requires that Recipients that employ 15 or more persons
shall adopt grievance procedures that incorporate appropriate due process
standards and that provide for the prompt and equitable resolution of
complaints alleging any action prohibited by this part.

d. 24 CFR Part 8, Section 8.54(a)-Notice.
The Regulation provides that Recipients that employ 15 or more persons shall

take appropriate initial and continuing steps to notify participants, beneficiaries,
applicants, and employees that it does not discriminate on the basis of handicap.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

G.

22.

Recipient shall provide documentation to the Department within thirty (30) days
of the effective date of this Agreement to show compliance with this term.

Recipient agrees to continue to refrain from discriminating on the basis of race, nation
origin, color, disability, sex, religion or familial status in accordance with federal law.

Recipient agrees to continue to refrain from discriminating against any person in the
terms, conditions, or privileges of rental of a dwelling, or in the provision of services or
facilities in connection therewith, because of race, color, religion, sex, familial status,
national origin, or disability.

Recipient agrees to continue to refrain from coercing, intimidating, threatening, or
interfering with any person in the exercise or enjoyment of any right granted or
protected by Section 803, 804, 805, or 806 of the Act.

Recipient shall provide its Language Access Plan (“LAP”) and all implementing
documentation to the Department no later than September 30, 2016. The Department
shall provide comments after receipt of the documents. Recipient shall have thirty (30)
calendar days after receipt of the Department’s comments to modify the LAP and
resubmit to the Department. The Department will notify Recipient if the revised LAP is
accepted. Recipient shall implement the approved LAP within thirty (30) calendar days
of the Department’s acceptance.

Monitoring

The Department shall determine compliance with the terms of this Agreement. During
the term of this Agreement, the Department may review compliance with this
Agreement. As part of such review, the Department may inspect Recipient’s property,
examine witnesses, and copy pertinent records of Recipient. Recipient agrees to
provide full cooperation in any monitoring review undertaken by the Department to
ensure compliance with this Agreement.

H. Reporting and Recordkeeping

23.

All required certifications and documentations of compliance must be submitted to:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Fair Housing Enforcement Center

ATTENTION: CONCILIATION REVIEW

One Sansome Street, Suite 1200

San Francisco, CA 94104-4430

Or by email to: sf_complianceunit@hud.gov
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I. Consequences of Breach

24. Whenever the Department has reasonable cause to believe that the Recipient has
breached this Agreement, the matter shall be referred to the Attorney General of the
United States, to commence a civil action in the appropriate U.S. District Court,
pursuant to §§810(c) and 814(b)(2) of the Act.

25. The parties understand that failure to carry out the terms of this Agreement may result
in suspension or termination of, or refusal to grant or to continue federal financial
assistance, or other actions authorized by law pursuant to the Act or any other authority
within the Department's jurisdiction.
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J. SIGNATURES
COMPLAINANTS’ SIGNATURE PAGE

This signature attests to the approval and acceptance of this Agreement.

Enrique Medina-Ochoa Date
Arizona Fair Housing Council
(Complainant)
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J. SIGNATURES
COMPLAINANTS’ SIGNATURE PAGE

This sigyfature/attests to the approval and acceptance of this Agreement.

4 | Sy
Enriqﬁe dina-Ochoa " Dite
Arizona FairiHousing Council
(Compiainankk
Jay Young Date

Southwest Fair Housing Council
(Complainant)
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RECIPIENT’S SIGNATURE PAGE

These signatures attest to the approval and acceptance of this Agreement.

M LG DQ/?LZQ

Don Logan (Equal Opportunity Director)
City of Phoenix, Arizona
(Recipient)
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APPROVAL

This signature attests to the approval and acceptance of this Conciliation Agreement.

@/«——H/%L Z'/IK/WIZ

Date !

Reg1on IX Dlrector
Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity



Appendix 1

Media Contacts
Phoenix 2016

12 News
desk @ 12news.com

ABC15
fax: 602-685-6363
assignmentdesk@abc15.com

AZ Central/The Arizona Republic
newstips @arizonarepublic.com
Fax: 602-444-8044

AZ Family 3/CBS5
phxnewdesk @meredith.com

Deaf Cactus News
Email: deafcactusaz@gmail.com

East Valley Tribune
kmixer@evtrib.com

Fox10
press @fox10phoenix.com

KJZZ 91.5 FM Radio
news @rioradio.org

KNAU Radio
azcapmedia@gmail.com; knaunews @nau.edu
Fax: 928-523-6202

KNXV TV-15 ABC
515 North 44th Street
Phoenix, AZ 85008
602-273-1500

KPNX TV-12 NBC

1101 North-Central Avenue
PO Box 711

Phoenix, AZ 85001
602-257-1212

La Voz

TV y Mas

(Part of USA Today Insert)

200 E. Van Buren Street
Phoenix, AZ 85004

Phone: (602) 444-3821

Elvia Diaz, Editor
elvia.diaz@arizonarepublic.com




Maricopa County Telecommunications
301 West Jefferson Street

Fourth Floor

Phoenix, AZ 85003

602-506-3432

Phoenix New Times
amy.silverman @ newtimes.com
Fax: 602-340-8806

Prensa Hispana

809 East Washington Street

Ste 209

Phoenix, AZ 85034

Phone: (602) 256-2443

Email: ml@presnahispana.org
Website: www.prensahispaniaaz.com

SunSounds of Arizona (for broadcasts in
Maricopa County and Central Arizona)
2323 W. 14th Street

Tempe, Arizona 85281

Phone: 480-774-8300

Email: info@sunsounds.org

Telemundo - KDRX TV 48
4625 33rd Place

Phoenix, AZ 85040
602-470-0507
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